Getting Started with Excel 2008

A University of Michigan Library Instructional Technology Workshop

Table of Contents

Elements of An Excel Document	2
Resizing and Hiding Columns and Rows	3
Using Panes to Create Spreadsheet Headers	3
Using the AutoFill Command	4
Using AutoFill for Sequences	4
Using AutoFill for Formulas	4
Using Formulas and Functions	5
Using the AutoSum Command	5
Inserting a Function	6
Creating Weighted Averages Exercise	7
Defining a Named Area	8
Using the Named Area in a Formula	8
Substituting Letter Grades Exercise	9
COUNTIF Exercise	11
TRIM Exercise	
Formatting	
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows	
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows Setting Up the Page	12 12 12
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows Setting Up the Page Sorting Data	12 12
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows Setting Up the Page Sorting Data	12 12 12
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows Setting Up the Page Sorting Data Filtering Data Advanced Filter	12 12 12 12 13 13 13 14
Formatting Cells, Columns and Rows Setting Up the Page Sorting Data Filtering Data Advanced Filter Adding A Chart	12
 Formatting	12 12 12 12 13 13 13 14 14 14
 Formatting	12 12 12 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14
 FormattingCells, Columns and RowsSetting Up the Page Sorting Data Filtering DataAdvanced FilterAdvanced Filter	12 12 12 13 13 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 12
 Formatting	12

ELEMENTS OF AN EXCEL DOCUMENT

When you open Excel, a blank workbook is automatically opened. A **workbook** is a file with one or more sheets; each **worksheet** (sometimes called "spreadsheet) is a "page" in the workbook where you enter and work with your data. Each workbook starts with one sheet, but you can add more by clicking on the <u>Insert Worksheet</u> icon to the right of your last sheet's tab (circled below). **To change the name, double-click on the sheet's tab and then type the new name.**

An Excel worksheet is made up of a series of **columns** (named with letters e.g. A, B, C...) and **rows** (named with numbers e.g. 1, 2, 3...) that define the cells – for example, "F27", as below. To enter data (text or numbers), click in the appropriate cell and start typing. When you type, the data goes into the currently selected cell, called the **active cell**. All the data you enter in the active cell appears in the Formula bar. If you need to change the data, you can double-click on the cell to activate the cursor in the cell, or click in the Formula bar and make the change there.

Active Cell		27	🗘 🦨 Ge	tting Started with	Excel				
$\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc$	excelexample.xls								\bigcirc
2	3 🚍 📇	ĥ 💼	🔮 👩 • 🖂	• <u>></u> • A	A.	100% - 🕐			
New Open S	ave Print Impo	rt Copy Paste Fo	rmat Undo Redo	AutoSum Sort A-	Z Sort Z-A Gallery	/ Toolbox Zoom Help			
Arial	* 10 *	B <i>I</i> ⊻	<u> </u>	\$%,\$	$\begin{array}{c} 0 & 0 \\ \bullet \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \bullet \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \bullet \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \begin{array}{c} 0 & \bullet \\ \end{array} \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \\ \end{array} \qquad \end{array} \qquad \end{array}$	🖽 • 🖄 • <u>A</u> •			
			Sheets	Charts	SmartArt Graphic	s WordArt			
A	B	C D	E		F	G	Н	I J	К 듣
22 5/6	03 1:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM Tuesda	22	Drop in and Learn How	to Create PDFs for the	Knowledge Navigation Center	40	28 No	Open
23 5/6	03 2:30:00 PM	4:30:00 PM Tuesda	23	UM.SiteMaker: Custom	Websites Made Simple	Media Union Windows Training Room	20	16 No	Open
24 5/6	03 2:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM Tuesda	24	Intermediate Excel: Fur	nctions and Macros	Media Union Windows Training Room	20	20 Yes	Intermedi
25 5/6	03 1:00:00 PM	4:00:00 PM Tuesda	25	Introduction to FileMak	ər	2074 Campus Safety Services Bldg	20	17 No	Beginner
26 5/7	03 9:30:00 AM	11:00:00 AM Wednes	day 26	OKI at UMICH		Media Union Teleconference Room	20	10 No	Open
27 5/6	03 3:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM Tuesda	27	Getting Started with Ex	cel	Faculty Exploratory	17	17 Yes	Beginner
28 5/6	03 3:00:00 PM	5:00:00 PM Tuesda	28	Course Design for Activ	e Learning	SEB Multimedia Classroom II	25	19 NO	Open
29 5/6	03 1:00:00 PM	3:00:00 PM Tuesda	29 day 20	CoursetooiSNG Test Dr	e Web	Faculty Exploratory	1/	10 NO	Intermedi A
30 5/7	03 9:00:00 AM	Thousan AM Wednes	day 30	scanning images for th	e web	Instructional Technology Lab	0	o res	Beginner v
		ata Entry Basics 🛒 S	ims and Average 🚽 V	/eighted Average 🔪 Pa	nes and Formatting	•) < > 11
	rmal View	Ready				Sum=0		⊖ SCRL ⊖ CAPS	O NUM

The Formula bar is not "docked" (connected) to the other toolbars, so you can move it around independently. To navigate more quickly in your worksheet, use the arrow keys on the keyboard to move left, right, up and down. In addition, you can use the following other keystrokes:

- *Return* accepts your entry and moves the active cell down one; hold down the *Shift* key as well and you will move back up.
- *Tab* accepts your entry and moves the active cell to the right. Again, hold down the *Shift* key as well as the *Tab* key and you will move to the left.

The Esc key or <u>red X</u> in the Formula bar will abort your change.

RESIZING AND HIDING COLUMNS AND ROWS

You can change a column's width by putting your cursor between the letter for that column and the next (between A and B at right). When you get the two-headed arrow, drag to the right or left as desired.

Double-clicking on that same spot will "autofit" the column, making the column as wide as the largest piece of text/data in that column.

The same technique works for rows; put your cursor

between the two numbers until you see the two-headed arrow, and then drag or double-click.

To hide a column or row, put your cursor on any cell in the column or row, go to the **Format** menu, then **Column** (or **Row**) and choose **Hide**. To unhide a column or row, select the columns or rows before and after the missing column or row, go to the **Format** menu, then **Column** (or **Row**) and choose **Unhide**.

For exact height or width control, go to the **Format** menu, then **Column** (or **Row**) and choose **Width...** (or **Height...**).

USING PANES TO CREATE SPREADSHEET HEADERS

If your data set is large and it is difficult to see which values correspond to what heading, you can make the top rows and leftmost columns into headers that will stay put at the top and left as you scroll around the page.

- 1. At the top of the vertical scroll bar, there is a thick bar. Move your cursor over this bar and it changes to two parallel lines with an arrow.
- 2. Click and drag to divide the window vertically into panes. Adjust the split so that the first row (or two) is the only row in the top pane.
- 3. To set a horizontal pane, use the similar thick bar at the lower right corner of the scroll bar and drag it to the left.
- 4. To freeze the panes in place, go to the **Window** menu and choose **Freeze Panes**.

Note, you don't have to set them both; you can use just the vertical or just the horizontal. Once you freeze the panes, however, you need to unfreeze them to either adjust them or add another pane.

To remove the pane(s), go to the **Window** menu and choose **Unfreeze Pane**.

Once you have the column and row headings in place, you can scroll left to right and top to bottom and they will remain in place. This can be very useful to manipulate your data – see the <u>Sorting Data</u> section on page <u>13</u> for more information.

are 10	N
Track	
Keynote	a and
Web Authori	ng and Enh
Information	Manageme
Course Dev	elopment
) + + ())

0	A	ц. В	C	
1		January	February	March
2	Mortgage	8		
3	Car Payment			
4	Construction and the second		1.	
-				

USING THE AUTOFILL COMMAND

Excel has the feature that helps you automatically enter data. If you are entering a predictable series (e.g. 1, 2, 3...; days of the week; hours of the day) you can use the **AutoFill** command to automatically extend the sequence. You can also use this for formulas – set up the formula once, then use the AutoFill to propagate it to the other cells.

USING AUTOFILL FOR SEQUENCES

For Excel to know how to fill in the series, you usually need to provide two or three examples. In the case of months, weekdays, and hours, you only need to provide one example.

- 1. Type in either the first element (e.g. January or any month) or the first two elements (e.g. 1, 2) of a series.
- 2. Select the cell(s) you just typed in.
- 3. Move the cursor over the little block in the lower right corner of the active cell, and the cursor changes to a hairline plus sign (+), as opposed to the usual block plus sign.
- 4. Click and hold on the fill handle and drag to the right (or down) to fill in the series. Note that Excel can only extend series by adding to the sequence (that is, the next month, adding the same number, etc.), not other kinds of math such as square, multiplication, etc.



USING AUTOFILL FOR FORMULAS

To use AutoFill with formulas, insert the formula and make sure it works (more about working with formulas later in this document!).

- 1. Select the cell(s) with the formula and move the cursor over the little block in the lower right corner of the active cell, and the cursor changes to a hairline plus sign (+), as opposed to the usual block plus sign.
- 2. Click and hold on the fill handle and drag to the right (or down) to fill in the other cells. Excel automatically adjusts the formula for the row it is now on (so, in the example at right, Captain Crunch's total formula would read =SUM(D4:M4) and so on.

=SUM(D3:M3) N3 \$) (fx li 🖬 E. 1 M . Print Import Copy Paste Format Undo 10 -В T U \$ ¢Α≎ % Sheets Chart н irst ID-last 5 9 8 6 6 2 10 5 8 6 9 10 Jnder Captain 13-8957 14-5349 6 6 19-1103 10 10 Grape Magilla 20-1835 20-9383

A Note about using AutoFill with functions: If you want a constant reference (for example, each column should be divided by a certain cell's data),

add a dollar sign (\$) in front that cell's reference in the Formula bar. For example, if **=D8*\$P\$8** is in the Formula bar and you AutoFill from this cell, the next cell would read **=D9*\$P\$8**, changing the first cell, but keeping the second cell reference constant – otherwise, it would read **=D9*P9**. Another way to accomplish this would be to define the constant and then reference the constant, as seen in the <u>*Creating Weighted Averages*</u> section on page <u>Z</u>.

USING FORMULAS AND FUNCTIONS

Formulas in Excel are useful to perform various mathematical, statistical, and logical operations. You can type in a formula (though you have to be sure it's exactly right) or you can use Excel's preset formulas called **functions**. Excel can perform simple tasks like a calculator; for example, if you typed in =5*6 then pushed *Enter/Return* on the keyboard, what would appear in the cell would be 30. If you selected the cell again, though, you would see the **formula** =5*6. If you type in the formula, you must start with an equal sign, so Excel knows that the data in the cell is a formula. After the =, what comes next depends on what you're trying to do. If you were multiplying numbers (like in the above example), you would just type in the appropriate numbers and mathematical symbol (* for multiply).

The power of Excel, however, is to do more complicated calculations, including calculations for the cell itself, no matter what the content (meaning, if the content of the cell changes from a 5 to

a 8, for example), and more complex formulas (such as averages, sums, etc., beyond basic math). Just like a basic formula, you need to start with the equal sign. After that, you would put the function name, then the range of cells inside parentheses, separated with a colon. For example: =SUM(B2:B5).

Luckily, Excel has many preset functions, so you don't have to remember exactly what to type in - just remember the name of the function.

USING THE AUTOSUM COMMAND

Since adding is used so frequently in Excel, there is an icon on the toolbar that will attempt to do it automatically. When you use the <u>AutoSum</u> command, Excel guesses what data you want to sum together (usually a block of cells next to the cell where the formula is).

To use the <u>AutoSum</u>, go to the cell where you want the summation result to appear, click on the <u>AutoSum</u> icon in the <u>Standard</u> toolbar, and verify that Excel's guess is correct. If it is not correct, select the cells you wish to add to the formula by clicking on the first cell and dragging to the last one. Then press *Return* on the keyboard. The sum of the data of the selected range of cells will appear in the cell with the formula. If any of the values in this range of cells are changed, the cell with the summation formula will automatically update to reflect the new sum.

An example of a sum is displayed in the picture above this section.





INSERTING A FUNCTION

Before anything, you need to make sure your cursor is in the cell in which you want the result. You can insert functions by either going to the **Insert** menu and choosing **Function...** or by clicking on arrow next to the <u>AutoSum</u> icon and selecting *More Functions*....

The **Formula Builder** part of the Formatting Palette become active, and a list of operations that Excel can perform are displayed.

When you choose a function from the list (scroll to it or find it in the *Search* box), the bottom portion of the Formula Builder changes so you can select the cells you would like to involve in the formula. To select, use the mouse to click on the first cell and drag through the cells you would like to add. Note that for each function, this bottom portion will look different.

If you're not sure how to use a particular function, you can click the *More help on this function* below the function description and that will bring up Excel's Help.

Once the function is in the cell, you can copy and then paste it into another cell to do the same function for that different range of cells. You can also use the <u>AutoFill</u> command (click cell with the function, then drag to the right or down). The formula adjusts automatically for the new values.



As mentioned before, if you want a constant reference (for example, each column should be divided by a certain cell's data), add a dollar sign (\$) in front that cell's reference in the Formula bar. For example, if **=D8*\$P\$8** is in the Formula bar and you AutoFill from this cell, the next cell would read **=D9*\$P\$8**, changing the first cell, but keeping the second cell reference constant – otherwise, it would read **=D9*P9**. Another way to accomplish this would be to define the constant and then reference the constant, as seen below in the <u>*Creating Weighted Averages*</u> section. There are so many different functions in Excel that it would be difficult to cover them all, but we

There are so many different functions in Excel that it would be difficult to cover them all, but we will include a few below in addition to the AutoSum that was explained above on page <u>5</u>.

CREATING WEIGHTED AVERAGES EXERCISE

Suppose the final exam is 50% of the grade, and the homework and midterm are 25% each. To make a weighted average, each score is multiplied by the decimal equivalent of its weight, and the weighted scores are added up. The only restriction on a weighted average is that the weights must sum to 1 (or 100%). You could type this in by hand, for example: $=0.25*q_3+0.25*r_3+0.5*s_3$ but the problem with that is you would have to get into each cell to make

Quick Reference:

- 1. Enter weights
- 2. Select cells and name weights
- 3. Insert the sumproduct function a. Array 1 = first student's scores
 - b. Array 2 = Weights
- 4. Click OK and AutoFill

the change if you need to alter the weights for a different semester or class.

Excel has a function called **sumproduct**, which adds the products within a range of cells, so by using that function, we can avoid having to type in all that in the example above. In addition, because functions can refer to cell contents - and thereby change as the cell content changes - we use the cell references for our weights, and so if they change, our formula results will automatically changes. For example, if the weights change (so the final exam is now worth 40%,

and the midterm and homework are now 30% each), as long as the cells themselves are referenced (rather than the specific numeric value), the formula will automatically update.

If we add the weights above each column heading, insert the sumproduct function, choose the student's scores (Array1) and then the weights (Array2), the formula will be correct for the first student. If we try to use the AutoFill command, however, as we discussed in the Using AutoFill for Formulas on page 4, both cell references will moved down - so the second student's formula would be incorrect (as shown at lower right).

We can either use the \$ (dollar sign) to "lock in" the cell references for the weights, or we can define a named area referencing the cells with the weight information, and then use that name in the formula to reference those cells.

Before we define a name, create a new column for the weighted averages for all of the students. This way we can compare the weighted averages with the nonweighted averages.



DEFINING A NAMED AREA

- 1. Enter a set of weights for each score at the top or bottom of each grade column (e.g. .25, .25, .50). Make sure the weighting adds up to 1.
- 2. Select the cells containing the weights.
- 3. In the Insert menu, Name, and then Define....
- 4. In the <u>Define Name</u> dialog box, type a name in the *Name*: field note, Excel may guess at a name if an adjacent cell seems to be the label.
- 5. If you've already selected the cells (as we suggested in step 2), the *Refers To:* field will already have the correct cell information.
- 6. Click *OK* to accept the name for these cells in our example here, "Weights".

D	E	F		Define Name	
0.25	0.25	0.5			
HW	Midterm	Final	Weig	Names in workbook:	
78	77	68	72	Names in workbook:	(OK)
71	61	48		Weights	
80	86	86			Close
91	92	80		Scale	
77	94	74			
78	78	77			Add
83	95	68			
80	72	72			Delete
89	85	80			
77	70	66			
83	82	88			
91	75	93			
72	80	85		Refers to:	
				='Weighted Average'!\$D\$1:\$F\$1	
	D 0.25 HW 78 71 80 91 77 78 83 80 89 77 83 91 72	D E 0.25 0.25 HW Midterm 78 77 61 80 80 86 91 92 77 94 78 78 83 95 80 72 89 85 77 70 83 82 91 75 72 80	D E F 0.25 0.25 0.5 HW Midterm Final 78 77 68 71 61 48 80 86 86 91 92 80 77 94 74 78 78 77 83 95 68 80 72 72 89 85 80 77 70 66 83 82 88 91 75 93 72 80 85	D E F 0.25 0.25 0.5 HW Midterm Final Weig 78 77 68 72 71 61 48 48 80 86 86 91 91 92 80 77 78 78 77 83 95 68 77 70 80 72 72 89 85 91 75 93 72 80 85 77 280 85 85 86	D E F Define Name 0.25 0.25 0.5 Image: Constraint of the second s

USING THE NAMED AREA IN A FORMULA

In the Weighted Score column you created, click in the empty cell for the first student's score. To insert the sumproduct function,

- 1. Go to the Formulas Builder and type in *sumproduct* in the *Search* box.
- 2. Select the cells with the first student's scores for Array1.
- Type in the name Weights (or whatever you called it) in Array2. This field is not case-sensitive - you'll know you have it correct with the contents of the cells displays next to the field, and the result will display in the lower right of the dialog box.
- 4. Click *OK* to exit the dialog box.
- 5. Use the fill handle to extend the formula to all students.



SUBSTITUTING LETTER GRADES EXERCISE

Rather than entering letter grades by hand, Excel can do it for you. This also allows you to try different grading curves with a minimum of effort. We will create a table that has the numeric value of the student scores and the corresponding letter grade, and then use the **vlookup** function (vertical lookup) to compare each student's score to the table and return the proper letter grade.

1. Create a column for the students called **Grade** (or whatever you want).

Quick Reference:

- 1. Create columns for scale and grades
- 2. Select the scale and letters and name them
- Insert the vlookup function
 a. Look_up value = first students score
 b. Table_array = Scale
 c. Cal. index pure = 2
 - c. Col_index_num = 2
- 4. Click OK and AutoFill formula
- 2. Off to the side, add two other column headings for **Scale** and **Letter Grade**. This area is what we will compare to the student's score.
 - a. Under **Scale**, enter a straight scale by typing 0, 60, 70, 80, 90, down the column. For automatic grade assignment, you **must start with the low score** and increase as you go down.

В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	J	K	L
	Weights:	0.3	0.25	0.5						
					Weighted					Letter
st	ID-last 5	ΗW	Midterm	Final	Score	Grade			Scale	Grade
ipe	19-1103	78	81	90	84.75				0	E
	30-5234	71	- 77	85	79.5				60	D
arlie	19-2467	80	89	86	85.25				70	С
ster	20-9383	91	92	85	88.25				80	В
nta	30-5167	77	94	88	86.75				90	A

b. Under Letter Grade, enter 'E', 'D', 'C', 'B', 'A'. Your scale can be as detailed as you'd like (meaning, you can use A, A-, B+, B, etc.), but you need to set that up before you name the area (as in steps 3-6 below). If you change your mind later, you will need to redefine the area.

To use the same scale for all of the students, we will name that area, and then use the name in the formula (as we did with the weighted averages). Otherwise, if we copy the formula down (or use AutoFill), the references to the cells that contain the scores and grades would change, and the result would be incorrect.

- 3. Select the cells containing the scale and the letter grades, but not the headings themselves (as shown in the picture above).
- 4. In the **Insert** menu, **Name**, and then **Define...**.
- 5. In the <u>Define Name</u> dialog box, type a name in the *Name*: field for example, "scale."
- 6. If you've already selected the cells, the *Refers To:* field will already have the correct cell information. Click *OK* to accept the name.

Getting Started with Excel 2008

A University of Michigan Library Instructional Technology Workshop

Now we're ready to use that newly named area to assign grades. The **vlookup** function looks up a value in the first column of a table (where the values in the first column are increasing) and returns the value in any other column of the table. In our case, then, we will compare the student's weighted score to the first column of the table (our scale) and return the value in the second column (the letter grade). Because we have defined this area with a name, if we change the scale to grade on a curve (so, to get a B you only need 75 instead of 80, for example), the letter grades will automatically adjust.

- 7. Put your cursor in the **Grade** column for the first student then go to the Formula Builder and type *vlookup* in the *Search* box. Double-click on it when you see it.
- 8. In the Formula Builder,
 - a. Click in the *Lookup_value* field, and then click on the first student's weighted score.
 - b. In the *Table_array* field, type in what you called the scale and letter grades area remember, you'll know you're correct if the scale and letter grades appear to the right of the field.
 - c. In the *Col_index_num* field, put in the column number that has the result you would like to appear in our case, it's column **2** that has the letter grades we want to appear next to each student's weighted score. The correct letter grade should appear to the right and below the fields in the dialog box.
 - d. Note the *range_lookup* argument is not bold. That means it's optional.
 - e. Click OK, and the grade that corresponds with the student's score should appear.
- 9. Use the fill handle to fill the formula in to the rest of the students. Note that we don't have to worry about the reference to our scale because we used a name.

You can change the curve to something else (e.g. 55, 65, 75, 85) and see how that influences the grades.



COUNTIF EXERCISE

COUNTIF is a useful function that will only count the data if the data meets certain criteria. As with any function, place your cursor in the cell where you would like the result to display.

- 1. Go to the Formulas Builder and type in *countif* in the Search box.
- 2. Once you see *COUNTIF* as an option in the Formula Builder, double-click it to activate the lower portion of the Formula Builder.
- Click in the Range field and then select the data you wish to count – in our example, the Panes and Formatting sheet, column L. Notice that items in the column will display to the right of the Range field.
- 4. Click in the *Criteria* field and then click on the cell that contains the data you wish to count – in our example, cell A2. Again, the contents of that cell should display to the right of the *Criteria* field, and the result should display below.



5. Press Return on the keyboard to accept the formula.

Since we've referenced cells in both fields of the dialog box, you can use the AutoFill feature as we've discussed before.

TRIM EXERCISE

Sometimes your data has extra spaces at the beginning of the cell, so it won't sort or filter properly. You can use the **TRIM** function to get rid of them.

- 1. Create a new column heading (for example, "Fixed").
- 2. Go to the Formula Builder, and type *trim* in the *Search* box. Doubleclick on *TRIM* to activate the lower portion of the Formula Builder.
- 3. In the *Text* field, click on the cell that you would like to change, then press *Return* on the keyboard to accept.
- 4. Use the AutoFill feature to fill in this formula for the rest of the column.
- 5. Select and copy the cells in the Fixed column, then in the first cell in the original column, **right-click** and choose **Paste Special** from the shortcut menu.
- 6. Make sure the *Values* radio button is selected, and press *OK*. Delete the fixed column.

	-0	JA		000	Ø	
Q	Search f	or a fun	ction			
М	ost Rece	ently Us	ed			ń
	TRIM					1
	SUM					- 1
	AVERAG	E				- 1
	COUNT					- 1
	MAX					- 1
	MIN					4
De	scription	n				
text rem <u>Mor</u> An	is the to oved. e help o guments	ext fron <u>n this f</u> u	n which	you wa	nt space	s
	1					
TRIM						

Getting Started with Excel 2008

A University of Michigan Library Instructional Technology Workshop

FORMATTING

CELLS, COLUMNS AND ROWS

You can format the font, number, alignment, border, pattern, and protection of your cells, rows, and columns by going to the **Format** menu and selecting **Cells...** or by using the **Formatting Palette**.

Num	ber Alignment Font Border Patterns Protection
lategory:	Sample
General	Capacity
Number	
Currency	Decimal places: 2
Accounting	e e e
Date	Currency symbol:
Time	
Percentage	\$
Fraction	Manaking analysis
Scientific	Negative numbers:
Text	-\$1,234.10
Energial	\$1,234.10
Special	(\$1,234.10)
Custom	(\$1,234,10)

Font Tab/Section: change the font, size and color text.

Number Tab/Section: specify the format of the cell (such as currency, time, etc.)

Alignment Tab/Section: set the alignment and orientation of the text. You can also choose to wrap text in a cell or merge cells.

Border Tab/Section: change the color (fill color) and border of the cell.

SETTING UP THE PAGE

Go to the **File** menu and choose **Page Setup...** or go to the <u>Page Setup</u> section of the **Formatting Palette** to change the margins, page orientation, show/print gridlines, and to adjust the print size.

(Page Margins Header/Footer	Sheet	
Print titles			
Rows to repeat at top	\$1:\$1	1	
Columns to repeat at	left:	.	Options
Print			
Print area:		₹.	
Gridlines	Row and column headings		
Black and white	Comments: (None)	•	
Draft quality			
age order			
 Down, then over Over, then down 			
		6	Cancel OK

Θ O Formatting Palette O
▼ Font
Name: Arial
Size: 10 • 0
A ² A ₂
Vumber
Format: General 💌
Decimal:
Alignment and Spacing
Horizontal: 🗮 🗮 🗮
Vertical:
Orientation: abc 🚊 🕉 a
□ Wrap text □ Shrink text to fit
Indentation and Merge
Indent: 0 🛟 🗌 Merge cells
Borders and Shading
Borders
Type: Visite:
Color: 🔜 🔻 Draw by hand: 📝
Shading
Shading Pattern: Color: 🌆 🔻
Shading Pattern: ☐ Color: ▲ ▼ ▼ Page Setup
Shading Pattern: ☐ Color: ▲ ▼ ▼ Page Setup Orientation
Shading Pattern: Color: ▲ ▼ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ✓
Shading Pattern: Color: ▲ ▼ ▼ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ▲ Landscape Print Scaling
Shading Pattern: Color: ✓ Page Setup Orientation Orientation Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Landscape Print Scaling Fit to: 1 Page(s) wide 1 * Page(s) tall
Shading Pattern: Color: ✓ Page Setup Orientation ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Page(s) wide 1 Page(s) wide 1 Page(s) tall Adjust to 100% normal size
Shading Pattern: Color: ✓ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Page (s) wide 1 Page(s) wide 1 Adjust to 100% normal size Sheet
Shading Pattern: Color: ✓ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ✓ Page Setup Orientation Page Portrait Page Setup Data Page Setup Page Setup Data Page Setup Data Page Setup Page(s) wide 1 Page(s) tall Adjust to 100% <: normal size
Shading Pattern: Color: ✓ Page Setup Orientation Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Portrait ✓ Landscape Print Scaling □ Fit to: 1 Page(s) wide 1 Page(s) tall Adjust to 100% <:

SORTING DATA

For a quick sort, click the <u>Sort</u> icons in the <u>Standard</u> toolbar (see right). For a more complex sort, go to the Data menu and choose Sort....

If your columns have a header row (meaning, the label for what's in the column is in the top row), then you can choose the column in the pulldown menus. Otherwise, the menus say Column A, Column B, etc.

You can sort by up to three factors; if you only need one, just leave the other two blank. Note that for the first sort order, you can click the Option button to bring up special options.

Click OK when you are done.

FILTERING DATA

In addition to sorting, you may find that adding a filter allows you to better analyze your data. When data is filtered, only rows that meet the filter criteria will display, and other rows will be hidden. With data filtered, you can then copy, format, print, etc., your data, without having to sort or move it first. To use a filter, go to the Data menu, then Filter, then AutoFilter...

The column headings all now have a double arrow next to the heading name. Click on the arrow next to the heading by which you want to filter, and you will see a list of all the unique values in that column – choose the one you want.

Now the double arrow for the filtered column is blue; click on the arrow next to another heading to further filter the data. You'll also notice that the rows that

don't meet the criteria are hidden, as indicated by the blue numbers for the rows.

In the example at right, first the data was filtered by the day Tuesday, and now will be filtered by the level Intermediate, so the only ones that will display are Intermediate ones that occur on Tuesday.

To clear the filter, choose (Show All) from the double arrow in the column you want display again, or go to the Data menu, then Filter and Show All.

			Wed		
2	Weekday	\$ Level 🗢	Title		
3	Tuesday	C			
5	Tuesday	Sort Asce	naing		
7	Tuesday	Sort Descending			
8	Tuesday				
11	Tuesday	✓ (Show All)			
22	Tuesday	(Show Top 10)			
25	Tuesday	(Custom Filter)			
30	Tuesday	(custom ritter)			
34	Tuesday	Reginners			
40	Tuesday	beginners	,		
44	Tuesday	Intermed	ate		
50	Tuesday	Open			
55	Tuesday	Dogimiora	maroqueation		
58	Tuesday	Open	Introduction		
60	Tuesday	Beginners	Introduction		
63	Tuesday	Beginners	Managing Ci		
68	Tuesday	Intermediate	Orientation to		

Header row

Options...

O No

Cano



January, February, March, April, May, June

Weekday 🗢 SessionNumbe 🗢

Sort Ascending

Sort Descending

(Show Top 10...)

(Custom Filter...)

(Show All)

Friday

Monday

Thursday

Wednesday

Tuesday

Wednesdav

Wednesday

ednesday

[day iday

nesday

33

84

13

87

28

29

70

61 89

91

53

43

46

47

40

22

58

Sort top to botto

Sort left to right

ADVANCED FILTER

To employ an advanced filter, go to the **Data** menu, **Filter**, and then **Advanced**; the <u>Advanced Filter</u> dialog box will display. This dialog box allows you to set a particular criteria, copy results to another location (the other location must be in the same sheet), and capture unique values. In the example at right, unique values for the Sponsor column are now displayed to be copied to a new location.



ADDING A CHART

To add a chart, select the data you wish to appear in the chart. If the data is noncontiguous, select one set, then hold down the *Command/Apple* key on the keyboard to select the second set.

Click on the **Charts** tab in the Elements Gallery and click on the type of chart you want.

By default, the chart will just appear on the spreadsheet, and now you can move or modify it as described below.

To change the chart type (from *Column* to *Area*, for example), click once on the chart then click on a different icon in the **Charts** tab of the Elements Gallery.



MOVING THE CHART

You can move the chart around on the spreadsheet by clicking on it and then dragging it with a mouse. To move it to its own worksheet (so you can see it more clearly, print it easily, etc.), use the menu that appears only when the chart is selected – the **Chart** menu – and select **Move Chart**....



MODIFYING A CHART

Whether the chart is an object on the worksheet with the data or on it's own sheet, there are many ways to modify the way it looks and it's location. A few ways are described below, but explore to find more! In all cases, you have to select the chart first.

Add a title, move the legend and so on in the Chart Options section.

Edit the data by just changing it directly in the datasheet, or by clicking on the Edit... button in the Chart Data section. Clicking this button will jump you to the data in the chart.

Change the style of the chart in the Chart Style or Quick Styles and Effects sections of the Formatting Palette.

Change the color, etc. of the data series, by selecting it and changing it in the Colors, Weights, and Fills section of the Formatting Palette or by doubleclick on it to open the Format Data Series dialog box (shown below).

🔪 Line

Shadow 3-D Format

Error Bars

Axis Clabels

Options



WORKING WITH PIVOT TABLES

A pivot table is a way to summarize and view large amounts of raw data in an easy to read format. The pivot table doesn't change your raw data, but rather creates a new view of it. While there are many more things you can do with pivot tables than the below, let's look at an example.

ivotTable Wizard – Step 1 of 3

< Back

SELECTING THE DATA

- 1. Put your cursor anywhere in your data set (you don't have to select it all), then go to the **Data** menu and choose **Pivot** Table Report....
- 2. If you choose Microsoft

Excel list or database in the PivotTable Wizard and click Next, Excel will guess at which data

should be included; if it's wrong, select the correct data in the Range: field of the PivotTable Wizard - Step 2 of 3 dialog box.

Cancel

3. In <u>Step 3</u>, choose where you want the pivot table to appear - it's most common to put the pivot table in a new sheet, but you could change the radio button to Existing sheet if you want. You could edit the layout at this point, but we'll do that in the next step. Click Finish.

CREATING THE REPORT

When you click Finish, you will be brought to a new sheet, and the PivotTable toolbar will display. The PivotTable toolbar lists your column headings, while the sheet itself prompts you create your pivot table by dragging fields into place.

- Here 1. To create the pivot table, drag the fields from the <u>PivotTable</u> toolbar into the **Drop** Row Fields Here area - items in that column will display in the sheet area.
- 2. Depending on what you are trying to do, drag other fields into the Drop Data Items Here area.
- In the <u>PivotTable</u> toolbar, click on the **PivotTable** pulldown menu 3. and choose Field Settings to change the value (for example, from count to sum).

If you change your data on the source spreadsheet, be sure to click on the Refresh icon in the PivotTable toolbar, or from the PivotTable pulldown menu.



Formulas

ig Field Settings Table Options...

Need help? Visit the Faculty Exploratory or Knowledge Navigation Center on the 2nd floor of the Graduate Library. exploratory@umich.edu | http://www.lib.umich.edu/guides | knc-info@umich.edu

Show Report Filter Pages.



Cancel

Drop Column Fields Here

< Back

Next > Finish

Plenty

11 Dill

Category

Row Fields

12 Udino

13 Aserty 14 McGraw



Next >

2 400

Finish